
 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC MEETING  

OF THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 

 

The Architectural  Review Commission  of  the Village  of  Barrington will  hold  a 

meeting on Thursday, September 10, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. virtually at 200 South Hough 

Street, Barrington, Illinois. 

 

ZOOM Meeting Link Available Here:  

https://www.barrington‐il.gov/sept10arc 

 

Webinar ID: 881 0177 6549 

 

Please use this information to attend with video:   

Meeting Link: https://www.barrington‐il.gov/sept10arc OR visit www.zoom.com 

click “Join a Meeting” and enter Webinar ID: 881 0177 6549 

 

You  can  also  join  by  phone  by  dialing  any  of  the  following  numbers,  then 

entering the Webinar ID: 881 0177 6549 followed by the pound (#) key. Dial: (312) 

626 6799 or (646) 558 8656 or (301) 715 8592 or (346) 248 7799 or (669) 900 9128 (253) 

215 8782 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Public comment for this meeting will be accepted in three 

(3) ways: 

 

1.) Live public comment at the virtual meeting.  Instructions for how to provide a 

live public comment at the virtual meeting will be provided at the beginning of the 

meeting and again prior to the public comment section of the meeting.   

 

2.) By email prior to the meeting if received by 5:00 p.m., Thursday September 10, 

2020.   To submit public comment  in advance of  the meeting, submit an email to: 

jtennant@barrington‐il.gov including: Name, Street Address (Optional), City/State, 

Phone  (Optional), Organization, Agency,  etc. Being Represented  (If  representing 

yourself,  put  ʺSelfʺ),  Topic  or Agenda  Item,  followed  by  your  comment.   Any 

comments received by the deadline will be read by Staff during the public comment 

section of the meeting.  

 

3.) By phone prior to the meeting if received by 5:00 p.m. Thursday September 10, 

2020.  The public without access to email or unable to attend the live virtual meeting 

may leave a message with the Architectural Review Commission at (847) 304‐3462. 

 

AGENDA: 

 

 Call to Order 

 

 Roll Call 



 

 

 Old Business 

 ARC 20‐19: 142 W. Lake Street – Public Hearing  
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of a 

second story rear addition to the primary contributing structure 

 

 New Business 

 ARC 20‐22: 234 W. Lake Street – Public Hearing 
The  Petitioner  is  seeking  a  Certificate  of  Appropriateness  for  modifications  to  the  front 

entranceway of the primary contributing structure.  

 ARC 20‐24: 202 E. Hillside Avenue – Public Hearing  
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of 

rear addition to the primary contributing structure. 

 ARC 20‐23: 222 S. Cook Street – Preliminary Review 
The  Petitioner  is  seeking  a  Certificate  of  Appropriateness  for  an  addition  and  exterior 

modifications to the existing noncontributing structure. 

. 
 

 Approval of Minutes 

 August 13, 2020 

 

 Planner’s Report 

 

 Other Business 

 

 Adjournment 

 
Posted:     Barrington Village Hall 

 

Architectural Review Commission Members, Village President and Board of Trustees, Village Manager, 

Department Heads, Recording Secretary, Courier / Herald / Chicago Tribune / Chicago Sun Times 

 

The Village of Barrington is subject  to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990.    Individuals  with  disabilities  who  plan  to  attend  this  meeting  and  who  require  certain 

accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 

questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the Village’s facilities, are requested to contact 

the Village Clerk’s Office at 200 S. Hough Street, Barrington,  Illinois 60010 or call at 847/304‐3400 

promptly to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 



 
 

1 

 

 

TO:    Architectural Review Commission  MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2020 

Public Hearing  

 

FROM: Development Services Department  PREPARED BY:  Jennifer Tennant      
                  Asst. Director of Development Services 

 

ARC 20‐19: 142 W. Lake Street – HISTORIC/CONTRIBUTING 
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for a second story rear addition to the 

existing  contributing  structure  in  the Historic Overlay District.     The property  is zoned R‐6 Single‐Family 

Residential District and is located in the H‐Historic Overlay District.  The subject property is approximately 

8,548 sq. ft.  All plans are subject to a final building, engineering and zoning review and approval prior to the 

issuance of a building permit.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER:   Steven & Katherine Tracy, 142 W. Lake Street, Barrington, IL 60010 

APPLICANT:     Steven & Katherine Tracy, 142 W. Lake Street, Barrington, IL 60010 

ARCHITECT:    Sherman Design Build, LLC  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
   

The ARC should consider the following items and provide guidance to the Petitioner prior to the final 

motion relating to ARC 20‐19: 

 

 The ARC should determine if additional information is needed on the dormer trim/bracket detail 

 Vertical window casing dimension shall match the existing vertical casing detail on the house.  

 All plans are subject to final building, engineering and zoning review prior to the issuance of a 

building permit.   

 

Motion: If the ARC concurs with Staff’s findings, conditions and required  final details  contained 

herein, Staff recommends that the ARC adopt these findings as their  own  and make  a motion  to 

approve ARC 20‐19 subject to any additional conditions, recommendation or required final details 

established by the ARC. 

 

PRELIMINARY REVIEW COMMENTS FROM 8/13/2020 
   

1. The ridge of the proposed addition should be reduced to be in line with the existing front ridge height. 

This item has been addressed. 

 

2. Dimensions for the existing trim detail to be matched must be provided as part of the final submittal 

including the window trim detail and dormer trim detail. 

The ARC should determine if additional information is needed on the dormer trim and bracket detailing. 

 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 



2 

3. All materials must be labeled on the final plans.  Verify existing shingles are architectural style. 

This item has been addressed. 

 

FINDING OF FACT  
In considering an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for alteration of a contributing structure, the 

Architectural Review Commission,  or  the Zoning Official,  for  administrative decision,  shall  find  that  the 

project substantially complies with all of the following general standards per Zoning Ordinance Section 9.8‐G 

that pertain to the application and that the decision is in the best interest of the Village: 

 

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be used for a purpose that requires minimal change 

to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment. 

The property was originally and  is currently utilized as a single‐family residence.   Staff  finds  that  this 

standard is met.  

 

2. The historic  character and architectural design of a property  shall be  retained and preserved.   The 

removal and  replacement of historic materials shall be permitted provided  these materials shall be 

replaced with like materials in design, dimension, profile and texture.  Re‐creation of false details that 

are not original to the structure or the architectural style of the structure shall not be permitted.   

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the existing 

trim details on the addition.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

3. All sites, structures and objects shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations that have 

no historical basis and which seek to create a false sense of history or architecture are not allowed. 

The Petitioner is proposing a second story rear addition to be constructed above the one‐story rear addition 

constructed in 2016.   The addition is generally compatible with the size, shape and scale of the original 

structure with the exception of the proposed wall plate height and overall ridge height.  The ridge height 

of the addition exceeds the ridge height of the existing structure by approximately 3’‐0”.  Staff recommends 

that the wall plate height is reduced to lower with the ridge height of the addition without changing the 

roof pitch.   At the 8/13/20 preliminary review meeting, the ARC determined that the ridge height of the 

addition  should not  exceed  the  ridge height of  the  existing  structure.   The  final plans were modified 

accordingly.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

4. Alterations or additions that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained 

and preserved or re‐created. 

No additions or alterations which have acquired historic significance will be altered.  The rear of the house 

was altered in 2016 with the addition of a one‐story flat roofed structure with the intent of constructing a 

second story in the future.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

5. Distinctive  features,  finishes  and  construction  techniques  or  examples  of  craftsmanship  that 

characterize  a historic property  shall be preserved or  re‐created.   The  removal  and  replacement of 

historic materials  shall  be  permitted  provided  these materials  are  replaced with  like materials  in 

design, dimension, profile and texture. 

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the existing 

trim details on the addition.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

6. Deteriorated architectural features may be replaced provided  these materials are replaced with  like 

materials  in design, dimension, profile and  texture. Repair or  replacement of missing architectural 

features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or 

pictorial  evidence  rather  than  on  conjectural  designs  or  the  availability  of  different  architectural 

elements from other structures or objects. 



3 

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the existing 

trim details on the addition.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not 

be used.   The surface cleaning of structures,  if appropriate, shall be undertaken using  the gentlest 

means possible. 

No chemical or physical treatments are proposed.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be discouraged when 

such  alterations  and  additions  do  not  destroy  significant  cultural,  historical,  architectural  or 

archaeological materials,  and  such  design  is  compatible  with  the  size,  scale,  color, material  and 

character of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

The Petitioner is proposing to construct a second story rear addition above a flat roofed one‐story addition 

constructed in 2016.  The 2016 addition was constructed with the idea that a second story might be added 

in the future.  The second story addition is generally compatible with the size and shape of the existing 

structure.  The Petitioner is proposing a cross gable design with a matching 12/12 roof pitch.  However, 

the ridge of the proposed addition exceeds the ridge of the existing structure by approximately 3’‐0”.  The 

wall plate and ridge height is slightly out of scale with the rest of the structure.  Staff recommends that the 

ridge of the addition is lowered by reducing the wall plate height without impacting the matching 12/12 

roof pitch.  This section of the roofline is setback approximately 36’ from the front ridge therefore Staff 

finds that a compromise may be appropriate in order to reduce the wall plate height by 18”‐24” in order 

to  reduce  the  scale of  the gable  end and bring  the  ridge height  closer  to  the original.   At  the 8/13/20 

preliminary review meeting, the ARC determined that the ridge height of the addition should not exceed 

the ridge height of the existing structure and that allowing an 18‐24” extension was not appropriate.  The 

final plans were modified accordingly to reduce the ridge height of the addition to be in  line with the 

existing structure.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

9. Additions or alterations to structures shall be done in such a manner that if such additions or alterations 

were to be removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the structure would be unimpaired. 

The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible in massing, size, scale and 

architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 

The proposed addition is a cross gable design constructed on a flat roof first floor addition.  This design 

matches into the existing structure well without impairing the form or integrity of the existing shape.  The 

addition will be constructed in the same footprint above the 2016 flat roofed addition which was off‐set 

from the original structure.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

10. Building materials inappropriate to the style and period of the building, such as vinyl or aluminum 
cladding, shall be prohibited.  All roof materials shall be architectural asphalt shingles, cedar shake, 

slate  or  other historically  accurate  roofing material.   All materials  shall be  subject  to  the Historic 

Overlay District Design Guidelines. 

The Petitioner has proposed the following materials that he intends to use for the addition: 

 

SIDING   wood to match existing.  OK. 

   

TRIM  wood to match existing.  OK.     

 

GUTTERS  half‐round to match existing.  OK.    

 

SHINGLES  architectural shingles to match existing. OK.  

 

WINDOWS  Marvin Ultimate aluminum clad.  OK.  



4 

 

DOORS  N/A   

 

CHIMNEY  N/A 

 

PORCH   N/A 

` 

OTHER  N/A 

 

All material information, including window specifications, must be labeled on the final submittal.  Staff 

finds that this standard is met. 

 

11. Additional design standards adopted by the Architectural Review Commission and Village Board of 
Trustees. 

Staff finds that the proposed project is in general compliance with the Historic District Design Guidelines.   

 

 

142 W. Lake Street – Contributing 

 
 

Located at  this address  is a  two‐story gabled  ell Folk Victorian dwelling built  ca. 1890.   The house has a 

continuous brick foundation, a gable roof of asphalt shingles, an interior concrete block chimney and exterior 

of aluminum siding.  On the main (S) façade is a shed roof entry porch with an original milled column, milled 

engaged columns, vergeboard brackets, drop pendants and a sawtooth valence.  The main entrance retains its 

original, single‐light and three wood panel door.  On the main façade projecting bay is a Palladian window.  

Most of the remaining windows are original, one‐over‐one and two‐over‐two, rectangular double hung wood 

sash wood sash with wood corniced surrounds.  On the east façade is a bay window with three, two‐over‐two 

double hung wood sash windows, eave brackets and sawtooth valences.  Also on the east façade is a shed roof 

entry porch with original milled columns.  

 

To the rear of the dwelling is a ca. 1970, frame garage.  Noncontributing 



 
62 Surrey Lane East  Barrington Hills, IL 60010 

 847.858.6083   Kevin.Sherman@ShermanDB.com 

Design/Build   Architecture  General Contracting  

 
July 20, 2020 
 

Chairperson Marty O’Donnell and Commissioners 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 
Village of Barrington, 200 South Hough Street 
Barrington, IL 60010 
 
RE: Architectural Review Meeting of August 13, 2020 

Proposed 2nd story addition on rear of house, 142 W Lake St 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
OVERVIEW 
Add a 20.5’Wx14’L second floor addition onto existing 1 story frame frame addition added in 
2016. The exterior finish will the same as the existing home. The windows will be Marvin Clad 
Ultimate double hung wood with aluminum clad exterior. No change to existing front and sides of 
existing house, or parking.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A1 Site Plan & Floor Plan 
A2 Elevations & Sections 

 

 
PRESENTATION MATERIALS 
Are samples of typical smooth painted cedar siding & wood trim boards necessary since they are typical 
of the existing house? 
 
CONSTRUCTION 
Construction of this project is expected to begin January 2021 and end April 2021. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
 
 
 
Kevin Sherman 
IL Licensed Architect 

 



141 W LAKE ST 

138 W LAKE ST 

200 W LAKE ST 

142 W LAKE ST— Looking NE  142 W LAKE ST— Looking NW 

142 W LAKE ST—Looking SW   

 

142 W LAKE ST—Looking S 



142 W LAKE ST—TYPICAL EAVE DETAIL 

Kevin Sherman
Callout
4" exposure painted cedar bevel siding

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Painted cedar 2x corner boards

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Frieze board. Painted cedar 2x fascia. Color: Benjamin Moore Hudson Bay 1680

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Painted crownmould

Kevin Sherman
Callout
1x painted fascia & barge board

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Painted beadboard soffit

Kevin Sherman
Callout
1/2 round gutter

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Color: Benjamin Moore Mountain Peak White 2148-70

Kevin Sherman
Callout
Small painted bed molding.







 
 

1 

 

 

TO:    Architectural Review Commission  MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2020 

Public Hearing  

 

FROM: Development Services Department  PREPARED BY:  Jennifer Tennant      
                  Asst. Director of Development Services 

 

ARC 20‐22: 234 W. Lincoln Avenue – HISTORIC/CONTRIBUTING 
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for construction of new front entrance 

landing  to  the primary contributing structure  in  the Historic Overlay District.     The property  is zoned R‐6 

Single‐Family Residential District and is located in the H‐Historic Overlay District.  The subject property is 

approximately  8,759  sq.  ft.   All plans  are  subject  to  a  final building,  engineering  and  zoning  review  and 

approval prior to the issuance of a building permit.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER:   William Wright, 234 W. Lincoln Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 

APPLICANT:     William Wright, 234 W. Lincoln Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 

ARCHITECT:     

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
   

The ARC should consider the following items and provide guidance to the Petitioner prior to the final 

motion relating to ARC 20‐22: 

 

 The subject property is over on impervious surface therefore the stairs will likely remain in the 

current footprint rather than the expanded footprint shown on the attached plans.  However, the 

ARC  should consider both  configurations:  (1)  the  stairs  in  the  same  footprint and  (2)  the  stairs 

expanded out, with  the same architectural detailing  in  the event  the property owner decides  to 

modify the impervious surface on the site to accommodate the stair expansion.  

 The ARC should consider whether a newel post cap is needed and if the band board at the base of 

the skirting should be eliminated. 

 Some materials as labeled as wood, some components are not labeled.   Final permit plans shall 

indicate materials for all components of the project.  If non‐wood materials are utilized they shall 

mimic wood in design, dimension, profile and texture. 

 All plans are subject to final building, engineering and zoning review prior to the issuance of a 

building permit.   

 

Motion: If the ARC concurs with Staff’s findings, conditions and required  final details  contained 

herein, Staff recommends that the ARC adopt these findings as their  own  and make  a motion  to 

approve ARC 20‐22 subject to any additional conditions, recommendation or required final details 

established by the ARC. 

 

 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 



2 

FINDING OF FACT  
In considering an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for alteration of a contributing structure, the 

Architectural Review Commission,  or  the Zoning Official,  for  administrative decision,  shall  find  that  the 

project substantially complies with all of the following general standards per Zoning Ordinance Section 9.8‐G 

that pertain to the application and that the decision is in the best interest of the Village: 

 

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be used for a purpose that requires minimal change 

to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment. 

The property was originally and  is currently utilized as a single‐family residence.   Staff  finds  that  this 

standard is met.  

 

2. The historic  character and architectural design of a property  shall be  retained and preserved.   The 

removal and  replacement of historic materials shall be permitted provided  these materials shall be 

replaced with like materials in design, dimension, profile and texture.  Re‐creation of false details that 

are not original to the structure or the architectural style of the structure shall not be permitted.   

There are no proposed modifications to the original structure.  The Petitioner is proposing to construct a 

wood  entrance  landing  over  the  existing  concrete  stoop  to  enhance  the  appearance  of  the  primary 

structure.  The structure will incorporate traditional porch detailing.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

3. All sites, structures and objects shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations that have 

no historical basis and which seek to create a false sense of history or architecture are not allowed. 

The Petitioner  is proposing  a wood  entrance  landing with  traditional porch detailing.   The proposed 

alteration seeks to enhance the historic nature of the home.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

4. Alterations or additions that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained 

and preserved or re‐created. 

No additions or alterations which have acquired historic significance will be altered.  Staff finds that this 

standard is met.  

 

5. Distinctive  features,  finishes  and  construction  techniques  or  examples  of  craftsmanship  that 

characterize  a historic property  shall be preserved or  re‐created.   The  removal  and  replacement of 

historic materials  shall  be  permitted  provided  these materials  are  replaced with  like materials  in 

design, dimension, profile and texture. 

There are no proposed modifications to the original structure and no modification to existing materials or 

architectural detailing.  Staff finds that this standard is not applicable. 

 

6. Deteriorated architectural features may be replaced provided  these materials are replaced with  like 

materials  in design, dimension, profile and  texture. Repair or  replacement of missing architectural 

features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or 

pictorial  evidence  rather  than  on  conjectural  designs  or  the  availability  of  different  architectural 

elements from other structures or objects. 

There are no proposed modifications to the original structure and no modification to existing materials or 

architectural  detailing.    The  Petitioner  is  proposing  a wood  entrance  landing with  traditional  porch 

detailing.  The proposed alteration seeks to enhance the historic nature of the home.  Staff finds that this 

standard is met.  

 

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not 

be used.   The surface cleaning of structures,  if appropriate, shall be undertaken using  the gentlest 

means possible. 

No chemical or physical treatments are proposed.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be discouraged when 



3 

such  alterations  and  additions  do  not  destroy  significant  cultural,  historical,  architectural  or 

archaeological materials,  and  such  design  is  compatible  with  the  size,  scale,  color, material  and 

character of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

The Petitioner is proposing to construct a wood entrance landing with traditional porch details in the same 

footprint as the existing stoop and stairs.  Staff finds that he proposed modification is compatible with the 

structure and an enhancement to the character and streetscape in the area.  Staff that this standard is met.  

 

9. Additions or alterations to structures shall be done in such a manner that if such additions or alterations 

were to be removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the structure would be unimpaired. 

The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible in massing, size, scale and 

architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 

The proposed entrance landing is not integrated into the essential form of the structure in any way   Staff 

finds that this standard is met.  

 

10. Building materials inappropriate to the style and period of the building, such as vinyl or aluminum 
cladding, shall be prohibited.  All roof materials shall be architectural asphalt shingles, cedar shake, 

slate  or  other historically  accurate  roofing material.   All materials  shall be  subject  to  the Historic 

Overlay District Design Guidelines. 

The Petitioner has proposed the following materials that he intends to use for the addition: 

 

SIDING   N/A  

   

TRIM  N/A 

 

GUTTERS  N/A 

 

SHINGLES  N/A  

 

WINDOWS  N/A  

 

DOORS  N/A   

 

CHIMNEY  N/A 

 

PORCH  Some materials as labeled as wood, some materials are not labeled.  Final permit plan 

shall indicate materials for all components of the project.  

` 

OTHER  N/A 

 

Staff finds that this standard is met subject to material clarification on permit plans. 

 

11. Additional design standards adopted by the Architectural Review Commission and Village Board of 
Trustees. 

Staff finds that the proposed project is in general compliance with the Historic District Design Guidelines.   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



4 

 
 

234 W. Lincoln Avenue – Contributing 

 
 

ARC 02‐03 – demolish existing one‐car garage and reconstruct a new multi‐car garage 

 

Located at this address is a two‐and‐one‐half‐story cross‐gabled dwelling built in the Dutch Colonial 

style ca. 1910.  The house has a continuous ashlar–faced concrete block foundation, a gambrel and 

gable roof of asphalt shingles and an interior brick chimney.  The first floor of this dwelling has an 

exterior of ashlar‐faced concrete block while the second story has weatherboard siding.  On the main 

(S) facade is an original, single‐story, full‐width porch enclosed ca. 1980 with weatherboard siding 

and six‐over‐six double hung wood sash windows.   The recessed main entrance has a glass and 

wood panel door with a  three‐light  transom.   Windows  in  the main  section of  the dwelling are 

original, one‐over‐one rectangular double hung wood sash.  In 

the gable fields are original wood shingles and the gable field on 

the main façade has a Palladian motif attic window.  On the east 

façade  is a ca. 1945,  two‐story gable addition and an original, 

hipped  roof,  single‐story  lateral  porch  with  square  wood 

columns and enclosed ca. 1945 with an exterior of weatherboard 

siding and an exterior wall brick chimney.  

 

To  the  rear  of  the  dwelling  is  an  original,  single‐bay,  frame 

garage with a clipped gable roof of asphalt shingles, an exterior 

of weatherboard siding and a ca. 1980, glass and metal garage 

door.   Located above  the door  is a  three‐light  fixed glass and 

wood window.  Contributing 

 























 
 

1 

 

 

TO:    Architectural Review Commission  MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2020 

Public Hearing  

 

FROM: Development Services Department  PREPARED BY:  Jennifer Tennant      
                  Asst. Director of Development Services 

 

ARC 20‐24: 202 E. Hillside Avenue – HISTORIC/CONTRIBUTING 
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for a small rear addition to the primary 

contributing structure in the Historic Overlay District.   The property is zoned R‐6 Single‐Family Residential 

District and is located in the H‐Historic Overlay District.  The subject property is approximately 8,712 sq. ft.  

All plans are subject to a final building, engineering and zoning review and approval prior to the issuance of 

a building permit.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER:   Brian McManus, 202 E. Hillside Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 

APPLICANT:     Brian McManus, 202 E. Hillside Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 

ARCHITECT:    Gino Romozzi Architect  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
   

The ARC should consider the following items and provide guidance to the Petitioner prior to the final 

motion relating to ARC 20‐24: 

 

 Staff recommends the use of k‐style gutters to match existing gutters due to the fact that there is 

only 9 feet of gutter proposed on the east elevation in the same plane as the existing k‐style gutters. 

 All plans are subject to final building, engineering and zoning review prior to the issuance of a 

building permit.   

 

Motion: If the ARC concurs with Staff’s findings, conditions and required  final details  contained 

herein, Staff recommends that the ARC adopt these findings as their  own  and make  a motion  to 

approve ARC 20‐24 subject to any additional conditions, recommendation or required final details 

established by the ARC. 

 

FINDING OF FACT  
In considering an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for alteration of a contributing structure, the 

Architectural Review Commission,  or  the Zoning Official,  for  administrative decision,  shall  find  that  the 

project substantially complies with all of the following general standards per Zoning Ordinance Section 9.8‐G 

that pertain to the application and that the decision is in the best interest of the Village: 

 

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be used for a purpose that requires minimal change 

to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment. 

The property was originally and  is currently utilized as a single‐family residence.   Staff  finds  that  this 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 



2 

standard is met.  

 

2. The historic  character and architectural design of a property  shall be  retained and preserved.   The 

removal and  replacement of historic materials shall be permitted provided  these materials shall be 

replaced with like materials in design, dimension, profile and texture.  Re‐creation of false details that 

are not original to the structure or the architectural style of the structure shall not be permitted.   

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the existing 

trim details on the addition.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

3. All sites, structures and objects shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations that have 

no historical basis and which seek to create a false sense of history or architecture are not allowed. 

The Petitioner is proposing a small rear addition to square‐off the existing side addition.  The existing side 

addition has a lattice skirt and the Petitioner is proposing to match that existing condition due to the small 

size of the addition.  Although not a typical foundation detail, the size of the addition is small and it would 

maintain consistency on  the east elevation which  is visible  from Hillside Avenue.   Staff  finds  that  this 

standard is met.  

 

4. Alterations or additions that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained 

and preserved or re‐created. 

No  additions  or  alterations which  have  acquired  historic  significance will  be  altered.    The  proposed 

addition is a small extension of a non‐significant side addition.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

5. Distinctive  features,  finishes  and  construction  techniques  or  examples  of  craftsmanship  that 

characterize  a historic property  shall be preserved or  re‐created.   The  removal  and  replacement of 

historic materials  shall  be  permitted  provided  these materials  are  replaced with  like materials  in 

design, dimension, profile and texture. 

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the trim details 

from the existing addition on the new addition since it will be extended in the same plane.  Staff finds that 

this standard is met. 

 

6. Deteriorated architectural features may be replaced provided  these materials are replaced with  like 

materials  in design, dimension, profile and  texture. Repair or  replacement of missing architectural 

features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or 

pictorial  evidence  rather  than  on  conjectural  designs  or  the  availability  of  different  architectural 

elements from other structures or objects. 

There  are no proposed modifications  to  the original  structure aside  from  the proposed addition.   All 

existing details on the house will remain unchanged.  The Petitioner is proposing to match the trim details 

from the existing addition on the new addition since it will be extended in the same plane.  Staff finds that 

this standard is met. 

 

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not 

be used.   The surface cleaning of structures,  if appropriate, shall be undertaken using  the gentlest 

means possible. 

No chemical or physical treatments are proposed.  Staff finds that this standard is met. 

 

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be discouraged when 

such  alterations  and  additions  do  not  destroy  significant  cultural,  historical,  architectural  or 

archaeological materials,  and  such  design  is  compatible  with  the  size,  scale,  color, material  and 

character of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

The Petitioner is proposing to construct a small rear addition to square‐off the existing side addition.  The 



3 

proposed addition is generally compatible with the size and shape of the existing structure as it is a very 

small extension to the existing side addition.  The Petitioner is proposing to match all existing details on 

the addition.  Staff that this standard is met.  

 

9. Additions or alterations to structures shall be done in such a manner that if such additions or alterations 

were to be removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the structure would be unimpaired. 

The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible in massing, size, scale and 

architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 

The proposed addition will square‐off the existing side addition.  While it will be in the same plane on 

both the east and north elevations, it will be differentiated from the existing structure by the existing corner 

board and lattice skirting detail currently found on the side addition.   Although in the same plane, the 

essential form of the existing structure will not impacted due to the fact the main roofline will not intersect 

with the addition or be modified in anyway.  Staff finds that this standard is met.  

 

10. Building materials inappropriate to the style and period of the building, such as vinyl or aluminum 
cladding, shall be prohibited.  All roof materials shall be architectural asphalt shingles, cedar shake, 

slate  or  other historically  accurate  roofing material.   All materials  shall be  subject  to  the Historic 

Overlay District Design Guidelines. 

The Petitioner has proposed the following materials that he intends to use for the addition: 

 

SIDING   wood to match existing.  OK. 

   

TRIM  wood to match existing.  OK.     

 

GUTTERS  half round shown but house has k‐style.  Staff finds that k‐style to match should be 

utilized due to the fact that there is only a single 9’‐0” run of gutter on the addition. 

 

SHINGLES  cedar to match existing. OK.  

 

WINDOWS  N/A  

 

DOORS  N/A   

 

CHIMNEY  N/A 

 

PORCH   N/A 

` 

OTHER  N/A 

 

All material information, including window specifications, must be labeled on the final submittal.  Staff 

finds that this standard is met. 

 

11. Additional design standards adopted by the Architectural Review Commission and Village Board of 
Trustees. 

Staff finds that the proposed project is in general compliance with the Historic District Design Guidelines.   

 

 

 
 
 
 



4 

202 E. Hillside Avenue – Contributing 

 
 

At this location is a one‐and a half story, modified gabled ell Folk dwelling built ca. 1886 and extensively remodeled 

ca. 1930.  The house has a steeply pitched gable roof of asphalt shingles, an added 

concrete block foundation and an exterior of weatherboard siding.  On the south 

elevation is a partial‐width shed roof porch that was enclosed ca. 1930‐40.  The 

porch has one‐over‐one double hung wood  sash windows, a  single‐light glass 

and wood door and a weatherboard exterior.  At the roofline of this elevation is a 

gable roof dormer with one, one‐over‐one double hung wood sash window.  On 

the  east  elevation  is  a  gable  roof  dormer with  a multi‐light  diamond‐shaped 

window.  On the west elevation is a small inset entry porch with chamfered wood 

posts which are connected by a small wooden valence with a central arrow‐and‐dart drop pendant and clover leaf 

cutouts.  The porch railing has milled balusters.  The main entrance is located on this elevation and has a ca. 1970, 

glass and wood door with louvered glass.  The windows on the dwelling are primarily original two‐over‐two wood 

sash. 

   

At  the  roofline of  the west elevation  is a gable  roof dormer with paired,  two‐over‐two double hung wood sash 

windows.   In the dormer’s gable field are wood shingles of various patterns and a central diamond shaped attic 

window.  On the north elevation are two, original gable roof wings.  The westernmost wing has a small shed roof 

porch on its east elevation with chamfered wood posts.  This wing also has a diamond‐shaped attic window on its 

north elevation.  There are two, small one‐over‐one double hung wood sash windows on the west elevation.  The 

house has an interior brick chimney that appears to be rebuilt. 

   

Associated with the dwelling is a frame garage ca. 1930.  The garage has a hipped roof of asphalt shingles, a poured 

concrete foundation and a shiplap exterior.  On the west elevation are two garage bays with double, six‐light and 

three‐vertical panel hinged doors.  A pedestrian door on the south elevation has a flush wood door.  The windows 

in the garage are fixed, six‐light windows.  Contributing 
 

  

















1 

‘ 

 

TO:    Architectural Review Commission  MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2020 

Preliminary Review 

 

FROM: Development Services Department  PREPARED BY:  Jennifer Tennant    
                  Asst. Director of Development Services  

            

ARC 20‐23: 222 S. Cook Street (Rear & Side Addition) – HISTORIC/NONCONTRIBUTING 
The Petitioner is requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of a rear and side addition 

to  the  existing noncontributing  commercial building.   The property  is zoned B‐4 Village Center District 

District/Historic Overlay District. 

 

PROPERTY OWNER:   Kevin Carter, 222 S. Cook Street, Barrington, IL 60010 

APPLICANT:     Kevin Carter, 222 S. Cook Street, Barrington, IL 60010 

ARCHITECT:    Stratford Company  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
The Petitioner is requesting approval for the construction of a new front porch and small rear addition to the 

existing noncontributing primary structure. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
   

The ARC should consider the following items as part of the preliminary review of ARC 20‐23: 

 

1. The ARC should consider the relocation of the front entrance of the building from the Cook Street 

frontage to the interior side elevation of the building.  This modification will require the addition 

of an accessible ramp in front of the building.  The ARC should also discuss how the ramp will 

be architectural integrated with the building.  

2. The ARC should consider the ridge height of the addition in relation to the existing building. 

3. If the front entrance is relocated and the entrance steps are removed, the existing brick foundation 

detail should be matched, not replaced with stone as proposed. 

4. Consider the use of a more traditional exterior wall material on the first floor of the addition. The 

proposed stone does not appear to be compatible with the historic character of the area. 

5. An 18” knee wall should be incorporated for all full length windows. 

6. Modify the window trim detail to include a traditional sill. 

7. The ARC should consider the second story balcony railing design and the incorporation of Juliet 

style balconies on the front elevation of the building. 

8. The following items must be included as part of the final ARC submittal: 

a. Wall sections through all major components of the addition 

b. Section details  for all major architectural elements  including cornice/eave detail  (with 
gutters), window trim detail, rear porch detail, balcony railing detail, etc.   

c. Specifications  for  all  windows  and  doors.    The  use  of  an  approved  historically 

dimensioned window is required.  

d. Details for the accessible ramps and any associated railings.  Elevations with and without 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 



2 

the final accessible ramp configuration should be provided as part of the final submittal.  

e. All  final material  selections  should be  labeled  on  the plans.   Provide product name, 

product line and specifications for all non‐wood materials.  

 

PRELIMINARY FINDING OF FACT 
Staff believes the proposal must substantially comply with the three (3) standards  in Section 9.8‐H of the 

Zoning Ordinance (See Below).  

   

1. Scale and Form. 

a. Height  and  Width.    The  proposed  height  and  width  shall  be  visually  compatible  with 

surrounding structures and streetscape. 

b. Proportion of Principal Facades.   The  relationship of  the width  to  the height of  the principal 
elevations shall be in scale with surrounding structures and streetscape. 

c. Roof Shape.   The roof shape of a structure shall be visually compatible with  the surrounding 

structures and streetscape. 

d. Scale of a Structure.  The size and mass of the structures shall be visually compatible with the 
size and mass of surrounding structure and streetscape. 

 

Generally speaking  the proposed shape and  form of  the building  is compatible with  the existing 

building and traditional architecture found throughout the Historic Overlay District.  The Petitioner 

is proposing a traditional gable roof design throughout the addition to match the existing 8/12 front 

gable design of the existing structure.  The ridge height of the proposed addition exceeds the ridge 

height of the existing structure which is not consistent with similar structures in the area.  While this 

may be more acceptable  for a noncontributing  structure,  the 3’‐0” height difference between  the 

existing ridge and proposed addition ridge is significant and lowering the ridge of the rear addition 

should be considered.   

 

2. Composition of Principal Facades. 

a. Proportion of Openings.  The relationship of the width to the height of windows and doors of the 

structure shall be visually compatible with surrounding structures and streetscape. 

b. Relationship of Solids to Voids in Facades.  The relationship of solids to voids in the facade of 
the structure shall be visually compatible with surrounding structures and streetscape. 

c. Relationship of Entrance Porch and Other Projections.  The relationship of entrances and other 

projections  to  sidewalks  shall  be  visually  compatible  with  surrounding  structures  and 

streetscape. 

d. Relationship of Materials.  The relationship of the color and texture of materials including paint 
color  of  the  facade  shall  be  visually  compatible  with  the  predominant  materials  used  in 

surrounding  structures  and  streetscape.   There  shall be no permit or  review  required  for  the 

application of paint, however the paint color shall conform to the style of architecture as indicated 

in Recommendations for Paint and Paint Colors, to be established by the Architectural Review 

Commission. 

 

The Petitioner is proposing full length windows on the first floor of the addition and on the front 

façade of the existing building.  Staff recommends a knee wall for all full length windows to provide 

a more traditional appearance consistent with general character of the area.  Generally speaking, the 

window  fenestration  on  the  rest  of  the  structure  appears  traditional  in  nature  with  a  good 

relationship of solid to voids and no blank or unfriendly elevations.  

 

The Petitioner is proposing the relocation of the front entrance of the building from the Cook Street 

frontage to the side elevation of the building.   This is a non‐traditional configuration for both the 



3 

Historic District and  the commercial nature of  the building.   The ARC should consider how  the 

relocation will impact the expected relationship of traditional window and door locations with the 

street frontage, streetscape and compatibility with surrounding structures.  

 

All material selections must be provided as part of the final submittal.  

 

3 Relationship to Street. 

a. Walls of Continuity.   Facades and site structures, such as walls, fences and  landscape masses, 

shall,  when  it  is  characteristic  of  the  area,  form  continuity  along  a  street  to  ensure  visual 

compatibility with  the structures, public ways and places  to which such elements are visually 

related. 

b. Rhythm of Spacing and Structures on Streets.  The relationship of a structure or object to the open 
space  between  it  and  adjoining  structures  or  objects  shall  be  visually  compatible with  the 

structures, objects, public ways and places to which it is visually related. 

c. Directional Expression of Principal Elevation.  A structure shall be visually compatible with the 

structures, public ways and places  to which  it  is visually  related  in  its orientation  toward  the 

street. 

d. Streetscape and Pedestrian Improvements.   Streetscape and pedestrian  improvements and any 
change in its appearance shall be compatible to the historic character of an H Historic Preservation 

Overlay District. 

e. Subdivision of Lots.  The Zoning Official shall review subdivision plats proposed for property 

within  an H Historic  Preservation Overlay District  and may  require  changes  to  ensure  the 

proposed subdivision will be compatible with the historic character of the district and/or site(s).  

All  subdivisions  shall  meet  the  requirements  of  the  Village  of  Barrington  Subdivision 

Regulations 

 

The Petitioner is proposing the addition of a commercial tenant space to the south which includes 

the addition of several at grade entrances on Lake Street. However, this addition also relocates the 

primary front entrance door to the interior side elevation of the building.  This does not change the 

orientation of  the building  as  the  front  elevation  is  still oriented  to  the  street but  this  is  a non‐

traditional configuration for both the Historic District and the commercial nature of the building.  

Additionally,  this  relocation  requires  the addition of an accessible  ramp  in  front of  the building 

which does not connection or lead to the building.  The Design Guidelines strongly encourage the 

location  of  accessible  ramps  on  the  side  and/or  rear  of  the  building whenever  possible.    If  not 

possible, the ramp design must be architectural integrated with the overall design of the building. 

The ARC should discuss how this ramp might be architecturally integrated with the building design. 

 

The ARC should consider the impact the relocation of the front entrance will have on the building, 

the streetscape and pedestrian experience.  

 

 

   

   



4 

222 S. Cook Street – Noncontributing 

 
 
This gable front building may date from the 1880s; however, it was extensively remodeled or rebuilt 
into its present commercial form ca. 1990. 

 





























 

1 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

Village of Barrington 
Architectural Review Commission Meeting 

Minutes Summary 
 
Date: August 13, 2020 
  
Time: 7:00 p.m. 
 
Location: Virtual through ZOOM 
 
In Attendance:  Marty O’Donnell, Chairperson 
 Joe Coath, Vice-Chairperson 
 Karen Plummer, Commissioner 
 Leslie Haynes-Eiring, Commissioner 
 
Staff: Jennifer Tennant 
 Andrew Binder 
    
Call to Order 
Chairperson O’Donnell called the virtual meeting through ZOOM to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Roll call noted the following:  Leslie Haynes-Eiring, present; Tim Renaud, absent; Crystal DiDomenico, 
absent; Kevin Connolly, absent; Karen Plummer, present; Vice-Chairperson Joe Coath, present; 
Chairperson Marty O’Donnell, present.  
 
There being a quorum, the meeting proceeded. 
 
######### 
 
New Business 
ARC 20-16:   Materials Review – Andersen 400 Series Windows 
 
Ms. Tennant presented an overview of the request to allow Andersen 400 Series Windows for use within 
the Historic District.   
 
Chairperson O’Donnell said this window would be similar to the other window in the Historic District. 
He stated that the more windows that are approved, the better. He stated that this window would be a 
better window than the approved fibrex window. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath stated that the check bar is little fatter than the other windows.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell indicated that this window is not a perfect window but a better window than 
some other windows allowed in the Historic District. He asked if Sue, the applicant, would like to speak. 
 
Sue Harkless, the applicant, asked if she could use removable grills on these windows and asked why 
they are not allowed. 



 

2 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

 
Chairperson O’Donnell thanked Sue for attending and bringing a new window to the ARC. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath said snap in grills don’t cast a shadow and don’t hold a presence within the 
window. He continued that having no grills would also be not appropriate. 
 
Ms. Harkless stated that she wants to have a window that she can clean and does not want to climb a 
ladder to clean the windows. 
 
Ms. Tennant said the windows are tilt wash double hung windows. 
 
Chairperson O’Donnell asked if the original windows will be replaced. 
 
Ms. Harkless stated that she is replacing two original windows and has 21 windows in the house. 
 
Commissioner Plummer motioned to approve the ARC 20-16 subject to the conditions set by the ARC.  
Commissioner Haynes-Eiring seconded the motion. 
 
Roll call vote:  Leslie Haynes-Eiring, yes; Tim Renaud, absent; Crystal DiDomenico, absent; Kevin Connolly, 
absent; Karen Plummer, yes; Vice-Chairperson Joe Coath, yes; Chairperson Marty O’Donnell, yes.  The vote was 4-
0.  The motion carried. 
 
Chairperson O’Donnell thanked Ms. Harkless for her work on improving on her home.  
 
############ 
 
Old Business 
ARC 16-13:   110 Coolidge Avenue – Final Details 
 
The Petitioner is seeking final details approval for modifications to the approved windows for the 
approved rear addition.  
 
Ms. Tennant presented an overview of the request. She stated the property owner is requesting to modify 
the approval to utilize one-over-one windows on the addition for better consistency on the sides of the 
house.   
 
Chairperson O’Donnell agrees with the Staff Memo and has no issue with the request.  
 
Ms. Tennant gave an overview of the existing house and the windows of the primary house and the 
windows on the addition.  The existing sides of the house have one-over-one windows currently, not 3-
over-one.  
 



 

3 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

Chairperson O’Donnell stated that it would look funny if the windows on the addition were three-over-
one.  
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath asked if the homeowner is going to switch out the windows on the porch. 
 
Ms. Tennant stated that the windows on the porch will remain.  This only applies to the windows on the 
addition. 
 
Commissioner Haynes-Eiring indicated that the divisions look forced on the addition and that the one-
over-one windows would be more appropriate and the addition would have a better appearance. She 
agrees with the homeowner that it would be a more cohesive look. 
 
Commissioner Plummer motioned to approve the final details for ARC 16-13.  Vice-Chairperson Coath 
seconded the motion. 
 
Roll call vote:  Leslie Haynes-Eiring, yes; Tim Renaud, absent; Crystal DiDomenico, absent; Kevin Connolly, 
absent; Karen Plummer, yes; Vice-Chairperson Joe Coath, yes; Chairperson Marty O’Donnell, yes.  The vote was 4-
0.  The motion carried. 
 
##### 
 
New Business 
ARC 20-17:   640 S. Grove Avenue – Public Hearing 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Mike & Anne Brannan, 640 S. Grove Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 
APPLICANT:   Mike & Anne Brannan, 640 S. Grove Avenue, Barrington, IL 60010 
ARCHITECT:  Mark Swanson, 536 Summit Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
 
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of front porch 
and rear addition to the noncontributing primary structure. 
 
Mark Swanson gave an overview of the project. He indicated that they are adding an addition off the rear 
of the house and adding a front on the front of house. The front porch will have a metal roof and columns 
matching the column at the corner of the garage. He continued that the addition will have horizontal 
Hardie Board Artisan siding. He continued that the addition windows will be double hung on the rear 
and one casement on the side to match existing. He indicated that most of the trim is aluminum clad and 
the new trim on the addition will have to be Hardie.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell indicated that the trim can be any material that looks like wood. 
 
Mr. Swanson stated that the applicant will be using Hardie so it should not be a problem. He continued 
that he submitted plans to use aluminum clad trim to match the house but it is not a permitted material. 
 



 

4 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

Chairperson O’Donnell said K-Style gutters are appropriate for a colonial style home but asked what type 
of gutter would be appropriate for this ranch style home.  
 
Mr. Swanson responded that typically with k-style gutters a flush or flat fascia board is needed so that the 
gutter can layup against it. He continued that half round gutters are more appropriate if there is a crown 
and it looks better with a trimmed out fascia board. 
 
Ms. Tennant asked what type of gutter would have been installed when this house was built in the 1950s, 
since half-round gutters were typically not being used during this time period.   
 
Mr. Swanson said they probably used K-Style since that gutter was available and standard in the 1950’s. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath agreed with Mr. Swanson. 
 
Mr. Swanson indicated that the applicant wants to expand the existing driveway to add space for a 
second car.   
 
The Commission discussed adding a garage addition and front driveway options.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell asked the Commission for any other concerns regarding the project.  
 
Commissioner Plummer motioned to ARC 20-17 subject to the conditions set forth by the Commission. 
Commissioner Haynes-Eiring seconded the motion. 
 
Roll call vote:  Leslie Haynes-Eiring, yes; Tim Renaud, absent; Crystal DiDomenico, absent; Kevin Connolly, 
absent; Karen Plummer, yes; Vice-Chairperson Joe Coath, yes; Chairperson Marty O’Donnell, yes.  The vote was 4-
0.  The motion carried. 
 
# # # # # # 
 
ARC 20-19:   142 W. Lake Street – Preliminary Review 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Steven & Katherine Tracy, 142 W. Lake Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
APPLICANT:   Steven & Katherine Tracy, 142 W. Lake Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
ARCHITECT:  Sherman Design Build, LLC  
 
The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of a second story 
rear addition to the contributing primary structure 
 
Kevin Sherman, the project architect, gave a brief overview of the request. He indicated that they are 
proposing a second story rear addition to be constructed above the one-story rear addition that was 
constructed in 2016. He stated that the applicant wants to have more height in the addition.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell indicated that the height is the only concern of the rear addition. He thinks the 
ARC has not approved this type of addition in the past. He indicated that the plate height will have to be 



 

5 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

lowered. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath agreed with Chairperson O’Donnell and stated that clipping the ceiling should 
not be a big deal. 
 
Steven Tracy, the homeowner, indicated the extra height is needed to gain more functionally within the 
space. 
 
Mr. Sherman indicated that the addition ridge is parallel with the front ridge of the house and not highly 
visible. 
 
Commissioner Haynes-Eiring stated that it would tough to approve an addition that is higher than the 
existing house. She continued that the ARC does not want to set a precedent. 
 
Ms. Tennant indicated that there might have been one or two ARC cases that were approved at 6-12” over 
the ridge of the existing house because the addition was so far back. She suggested a compromise.  
 
Vice-Chairperson Coath indicated that rear additions should have the same standards as the rest of the 
house because it is a 3-demensional project and the whole building should be reviewed to ensure it matches 
the house.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell asked Vice-Chairperson Coath if he is okay with matching the height of the high 
front ridge. 
 
Commissioner Plummer and Commissioner Haynes-Eiring agreed that the addition cannot exceed the 
height of the high front ridge. 
 
Mr. Sherman asked if he could present a plan with the height of the addition in line with the high front 
ridge.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell asked if there is any impervious surface issue with this site. 
 
Ms. Tennant indicated that since it is an addition on the second story the impervious surface will not be 
impacted.  
 
Ms. Tennant shared the PDF of the secondary plan with the height of the addition that does not exceed the 
height of the high front ridge.  
 
The Commissioners reviewed the plan and all agreed that the new plan would be more appropriate with 
the lower ridge height. 
 
# # # # # # 
 
ARC 20-20:   148 W. Station Street – Preliminary Review 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Mary Gibson, 148 W. Station Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
APPLICANT:   Mary Gibson, 148 W. Station Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
ARCHITECT:  Modern Design & Graphics, 512 W. Van Buren, Elmhurst, IL 60126 
 



 

6 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

The Petitioner is seeking approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of two-story 
rear addition to the contributing primary structure 
 
Bill Rock, the project architect, gave an overview of the project. He indicated that they are proposing a 
two-story rear addition which generally matches the architectural style of the original structure with 
matching roof style and closely matching pitch. Mr. Rock asked the Commissioners about the proposed 
side entry within the setback.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell explained that the ARC only looks at the appearance of the house and that they 
would need to go to the Zoning Board of Appeals for any variations from the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Tennant gave an overview of a variation request and the variation standards. 
 
Mr. Rock asked the Commission on their preference relating to the proposed rear roof terrace option, one 
with a terrace and one without a terrace. 
 
Chairperson O’Donnell indicated had no preference on the terrace. 
 
Commissioner Plummer asked why there is not a window on the rear of the house. 
 
Mr. Rock stated they originally had a window on the rear of the house but had changes to the interior 
which cause the window to be removed.  
 
Commissioner Plummer asked if a window could be placed on the rear elevation. 
 
Chairperson O’Donnell stated that adding one more window to balance the rear would be sufficient.  
 
Mr. Rock indicated that they can place more windows on the rear elevations and a new window on the 
east elevation. 
 
Commissioner Haynes-Eiring stated that it would be nice to match the new window with the exiting 
window on the rear window. 
 
Chairperson O’Donnell stated that he agrees with Commissioner Plummer. 
 
Mary Gibson asked Ms. Tennant about the multi-family issue and if this Commission also addresses that 
issue.   
 
Ms. Tennant explained that further research will be needed to explain how the house became a multi-
family. 
 



 

7 
Minutes Summary 

Architectural Review Commission 
 

 

Ms.  Gibson stated that this building is used as a duplex and has renters currently in the house. She 
indicated that she may revert it back to a single-family house.  
 
Ms. Tennant stated that once the entry vestibule goes away, something will have to be put in place on the 
side elevation to break up the long plane. 
 
Ms. Gibson asked what type of structure could be placed on the building to break up the plane.  
 
Chairperson O’Donnell indicated that any offset would break up the plane. 
 
Mr. Rock asked if it would be enough to offset the side elevation if the whole back addition was shifted to 
east by 6-8 inches. 
 
The Commissioners agreed that a shift of 6-8” would be acceptable.   
 
Ms. Tennant stated that the proposed windows are not approved and would need specs of an approved 
window.  
 
Mr. Rock indicated that they will use the approved Pella windows. 
 
########### 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Other Business 
Ms. Tennant gave an update that the Village Board has directed Staff to propose the necessary amendments 
to make all accessory structures in the Historic District noncontributing structures.  
 
Adjournment 
There being no additional business to come before the Commission, a motion was duly made by 
Commissioner Plummer and seconded by Vice-Chairperson Coath to adjourn the meeting at 8:07 p.m.  A 
voice vote noted all ayes, the motion is approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Andrew Binder 
Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
 
Approved:  
 


	ARC Agenda 20-0910
	ARC 20-19 142 W. Lake Street
	ARC 20-22 234 W. Lincoln Avenue
	ARC 20-24 Meeting Packet 20-0910
	ARC 20-23 222 S. Cook Street
	ARC Minutes 20-0813 Draft



